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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 36th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of BECO Steel
Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Friday, 28 October 2022 at 03:00 P.M. at
the Florets Luxury Apartments, G-7, Ground Floor, 127-Ahmad Block, Garden
Town, Lahore, to transact the following business:

1.

By Order of the Board

To confirm the minutes of the preceding of Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders held on October 28, 2021.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2022 together with the Auditors' and
Directors' Reports thereon and the Review Report of the Chairman;

To declare and approve the final cash dividend at 10% i.e. PKR 01/- per
share to minority shareholders only except sponsor shareholders for year
ended June 30, 2022, as recommended by the board of directors.

To appoint External Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration.
The members are hereby notified that the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee have recommended the name of Tarig Abdul Ghani Magbool
& Co., Chartered Accountants, for re-appointment as auditors of the
Company for the year ending 30 June 2023.

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

o i

Lahore: 06 October 2022 Company Secretary
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Notes:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 21
October 2022 to 28 October 2022 (both days inclusive).

CDC Investor Account Holders will further have to follow the under-
mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000,
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Shareholders residing in a city and collectively holding at least 10% of the
total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide the
facility of video-link for participating in the meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act,
2017, and Regulation 4 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends)
Regulations 2017, a listed company is required to pay cash dividend to the
shareholders ONLY through electronic mode directly into the bank account
designhated by the entitled shareholders.

Dividend income on shares is liable to deduction of withholding tax under
Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Withholding of tax on
dividend based on ‘Active’ and ‘Non-Active’ status of shareholders shall
be @ 15% and 30% respectively.

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or those who
are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate, are requested to submit a
valid tax exemption certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the
case may be. Members desiring no deduction of zakat are also requested
to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction of zakat.

The shareholders of BECO Steel Limited having physical folios / share
certificates are requested to convert their shares from physical form into
book-entry form as soon as possible to adhere to provisions of Section 72 of
the Companies Act, 2017 by replacing physical shares issued by them into
book entry form.
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VISION AND MISSION STATEMENT, CORE VALUES AND GOALS

| VISION |

To accomplish, build up and sustain a good reputation of the project in steel sector locally and glokally by
marketing high quality of steel and allied products through team work by means of honesty, integrity and
commitment and to explore and create growth opportunities to maximize retumn to all stakeholders.

To provide maximum satisfaction to the customers by supplying quality of steel and allied products for well-
known steel brands through effective utilization of work force, material and machines by encouraging,
supporting and rewarding the employees with highest level of efficiency, productivity and profitability sharing
with shareholders.

CORE VALUES

L] Merit

Integrity
. Team Work

Safety
. Dedication

| GOALS |

Financial
L] To reduce cost and time to improve financial results.
L Te maximize profits by investing surplus funds in profitable avenues.
. To make investment decisions by ranking projects on the basis of best economic indicators.
L] Growth and superior return to the stakeholders.

Learning and Growth

L] Motivate and train our force, revitalize our equipment base and attain full autonomy in financial and decision-
making matters.

L] To enhance the technical and commercial skills through modern HR management practices.

* Continuously develop technical and managerial skills at all levels and stay abreast of latest technological

developmentsin the industry.

Internal Processes
L] To set up task forces with representation from all relevant departments to improve internal business decision making
and strategic planning.

L To use most effective business practices and formulate a framework of synergic organization with change in culture.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we take this opportunity to place before you
annual audited financial results of the company for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Financial performance

The summary of financial results of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2022:

Particular 2022 2021 Percentage
RS. RS. Change

Sales 6,310,320,105 230,770,190 2634%
Cost of Sales (6,014,357,200) (226,741,864) 2553%
Gross Profit 295,962,905 4,028,326 1247%
Administrative Expenses (43,874,558) (15,273,926) 187%
Distribution and Selling (15,775,800) (1,844,454) 755%
Expenses
Other Expenses (16,302,077) (2,644,306) 516%
Operating Profit/(Loss) 220,010,470 (15,734,360) 1498%
Other Income 94,909 22,311,482 100%
Profit from Operation 220,105,379 6,577,122 3247%
Finance Cost (145,473) (296,308) 51%
Profit before taxation 219,959,906 6,280,814 3402%
Provision for taxation (29,438,667) (3,957,423) 644%
Profit after tax 190,521,239 2,323,391 8100%
EPS (in Rupees) 4.45 0.09
Gearing Ratio (%) NIL NIL

The overall results of the company demonstrated 81% growth in the top line
resulting profit after tax of Rs. 190.521 million as compared to after tax profit of Rs.
2.323 million of the previous year mainly due to addition of plant & machinery. The
net sales made in the year amounting to Rs. 6.310 billion as compared to previous
year sale of Rs. 230.770 million mainly due to start of commercial operations of the
company resulting in successful outcome. The earning per share is 4.45 as
compared to Rs. 0.09 per share.
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Issuance of shares by way of other than right offer, and for consideration other
than cash against acquisition of non-cash assets including land, building, plant
and machinery

During the year under review, SECP vide its letter No. EMD/CI/80/2008/58 dated
31 January 2022, approved the issuance of 99,962,510 ordinary shares of the
Company, having par value of PKR 10/- each, at a premium of PKR 20/- per share,
for total value of PKR 2,998,875,300/- by way of other than right offer against
consideration of non-cash assets, including land, building, and plant &
machinery.

The process of transfer of non-cash assets including land and building, and plant
& machinery has been completed. Further, title of land has also been transferred
in the name of company. Ordinary Shares numbering 99,962,510 @ Rs. 10 per
Share with premium Rs. 20 per Share against consideration other than cash (i.e.
land, building, and plant &machinery) have been issued on 27 April 2022, and the
process stands completed in all respects.

During the reporting period, the company operated on its own manufacturing
facility to produce steel and allied products for approximately last two months of
the financial year, whereas, remaining period, it operated on toll manufacturing
facility.

BECO STEEL LIMITED (ANNUAL REPORT 2022)



During the year under review, 05 Meetings of the Board of the Directors were held
from July 2021 to June 2022. Attendance by each Director was as under:

Sr. No. Name of Directors Designations Meetings Attended

1 Mr. Muhammad Independent Director 5
Hashim Tareen

2 Mr. Mahmood Aslam Independent Director 5

3 Mr. Muhammad Asim Non-Executive Director 5
Raza

4 Miss Eman Shafique Non-Executive Director 5

5 Miss Afifa Shafique Chairperson 5

6 Mr. Ali Shafique Chief Executive Officer 1
Chaudhary

7 Mr. Waheed Akbar Executive Director 5

8 Chaudhry Muhammad | Chief Executive 4
Shafique Officer*

*During the year under review, the Chief Executive Officer Chaudhry Muhammad
Shafique has resigned which was duly approved by board of directors and Mr. Ali
Shafique Chaudhary was appointed as Chief Executive Officer with effect from
26.05.2022.

The Minutes of the Meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated within
the stipulated time in accordance with CCG. The Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary attended all the meetings during the year ended 30 June
2022.

Leave of absence was granted to the directors who did not attend the Board
Meeting.

BECO STEEL LIMITED (ANNUAL REPORT 2022)



Board Audit Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company has set up an Audit Committee comprising
of three Members in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance
during the year 30 June 2022, four Meetings of the Committee were held.
Attendance by each member was as under:

Sr. No. Name of Directors Designations Meetings Attended
1 Mr. Muhammad Chairman/Member 4
Hashim Tareen
2 Mr. Muhammad Asim Member 4
Raza
3 Miss Eman Shafique Member 4

In compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, audit committee met
with the external auditors without the chief financial officer and head of internal
audit once in a year.

Leave of absence was granted to the member who did not attend the audit
committee meeting.

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee:

The Board of directors of every company shall determine the terms of reference
of the audit committee. The Board of directors shall provide adequate resources
and authority to enable the audit committee to carry out its responsibilities
effectively. The terms of reference of the audit committee shall explicitly
documented and shall also include the following:

a. Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the company's assets;

b. Review of annual and interim financial statements of the company, prior to
their approval by the Board of directors, focusing on following:
I.  Major judgment areas;
ii.  Significant adjustments resulting from the audit;
ii. Going concern assumption;
Iv.  Any changes in accounting policies and practice;
v. Compliance with applicable accounting standards;
vi. Compliance with these regulations and other statutory and regulatory
requirements
vii. Al related party transactions.

Cc) Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to external
communication and publications

BECO STEEL LIMITED (ANNUAL REPORT 2022) n



d) Facilitating the external audit and discussion with the external auditors of
major observations arising from interim and final audit and any matter that
the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence management, were
necessary)

e) Review of management letter issued by the external auditors and
management's response thereto;

f) Ensuring coordination between the internal & external auditors of the
company;

g) Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting
framework and procedures and ensuring that the internal audit function
has adequate resources and is appropriately placed within the company

h) Consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities
characterized by fraud, corruption and abuse of power and
management's response thereto;

1) Ascertaining that the internal control system including financial and
operational control, accounting system for timely and appropriate
recording of purchases and sales, receipts and payments, assets and
liabilities and the reporting structure are adequate and effective;

]) Review of the company's statement on internal control system prior to
endorsement by the Board of directors and internal audit reports;

k) Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations
on any matter specified by the Board of directors, in consideration with the
chief executive officer and to consider remittance of any matter to the
external auditors or to any other external body.

l) Determination of compliance with relevant statuary requirements;

m) Monitoring compliance with these regulations and identification of
significant violations thereof;

n) Review of management for staff and management to report to audit
committee in confidence, concerns, if any about actual and potential
improprieties in financial and other matters and recommend instituting
remedial and mitigating measures;

0) Recommend to the Board of directors the appointment of external
auditors, their removal, audit fee, the provision of any service permissible to
be rendered to the company by the external auditors in addition to audit
of its financial statements. the board of directors shall give due
consideration to the recommendations of audit committee and where it
acts otherwise it shall record the reasons thereof.

p) Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the Board
of directors.
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Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

The board has reconstituted a human resource & remuneration committee
comprising of four members during the year under review. One meeting was held
during the financial year.

Attendance of members is as under:

Sr. Name of Directors Designations Meeting Attended

1 | Mr. Muhammad Hashim Chairman/Member 1
Tareen

2 | Mr. Muhammad Asim Raza Member 1

3 | Miss Eman Shafique Member 1

4 | Mr. Ali Shafique Chaudhary CEO/Member 1

5 | Chaudhry Muhammad Chief Executive 1
Shafique Officer/Member

Terms of Reference of HR & Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of HR & Remuneration Committee shall be determined by
the Board of Directors which may include the following:

Vi.

Recommend to the Board for consideration and approval a policy
framework for determining remuneration of directors (executive directors
and members of senior management). the definition of senior
management will be determined by the Board which shall normally include
the first layer of management below the chief executive officer level,
Undertaking annually a formal process of evaluation of performance of the
Board as a whole and its committee either directly or by engaging external
independent consultant and if so appointed, a statement to that effect
shall be made in the directors' report disclosing name, qualification and
major terms of appointment;

Recommending human resource management polices to the Board;
Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development,
compensation (including retirement benefit) of the chief operating officer,
chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal audit;
Consideration and approval on recommendation of chief executive officer
on such matters for key management positions who report directly to chief
executive officer or chief operating officer; and

Where human resource and remuneration consultants are appointed, their
credentials shall be known by the committee and a statement shall be
made by them as to whether they have any other connection with the
company
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Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and Committees of the Board

The evaluation of Board's role of oversight and its effectiveness is a continual
process, which Is appraised by the board itself. The core areas of focus are:

I.  Alignment of corporate goals and objectives with the vision and mission of
the company
ii. Strategy formulation for sustain operation
iii. Board independence
iv. Evaluation of board's committees’ performance in relation to discharging
their responsibilities set out in respective terms of reference.

Director's Remuneration

The remuneration of the Board of members is recommended by Committee and
approved by Board. However, in accordance with the Code of Corporate
Governance, it is ensured that no director takes part in deciding his own
remuneration. The company does not pay remuneration to non-executive
directors except fee for attending the meetings. In order to retain the best talent,
the company's remuneration policies are structured in line with prevailing industry
trend and business practices. For information on remuneration of Directors and
CEO in 2021-2022, please refer note to the financial statements.

External Auditors

The present External Auditors M/s. Tariq Abdul Ghani Magbool & Co. Chartered
Accountants, retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. The
audit committee & the Board of directors recommend the reappointment of M/s.
Tarig Abdul Ghani Magbool & Co. Chartered Accountants for the year ending 30
June 2023.

Internal Audit & Control

The company has an independent internal audit function. The board audit
committee quarterly reviews the appropriateness of resources and authority of
this function. The head of internal audit functionally reports to the audit
committee. The board audit committee approves the audit plan, based on an
annual and quarterly assessment of the operating areas. The internal audit
function carries out reviews on the financial, operational and compliance
controls and reports findings to the board audit committee, chief executive
officer and the divisional managements.

BECO STEEL LIMITED (ANNUAL REPORT 2022)



Material Changes

For material changes please refer to the note 1.02 to the financial statements. Al
the material events and other price sensitive information have been reported to
PSX on as and when basis.

Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of Shareholding of the company has been annexed to this report.
Related Party Transactions

All transactions with related parties have been executed at arm's length and
have been disclosed in the financial statements under relevant notes.

Communication

The company focuses on the importance of the communication with the
shareholders. The annual, half yearly and quarterly reports are distributed to them
within the time specified in the Companies Act, 2017. The activities of the
company are updated on its website at www.becosteel.com on timely basis.

Corporate Governance

The Board gives prime importance to conducting the company's business in
accordance with the best international and local corporate governance
practices and is committed to inculcating healthy corporate culture, ethical
business practices, reliable and transparent financial reporting, and open
communication channels with the stakeholders, and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. As a result, good corporate governance principles have
been deeply ingrained in company's decision making and operating set up as
well as monitoring processes.

The company recognizes and respects the rights of each and every stakeholder
including shareholders, employees, financiers, creditors, business partners, local
communities and others. The company encourages active participation of
shareholders in all general meetings of the company and values their views
towards better governance and operational management. The company is also
cognizant of its legal and ethical obligations towards its business partners, local
communities and other stakeholders; and takes appropriate actions to timely
respond to their expectations after taking into account a pragmatic view of
interests associated with the company.

The status of each director on company's Board whether non-executive or
independent has been disclosed in this report in accordance with the revised
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Code of Corporate Governance, 2019 (CCQG) issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

The code of conduct for directors and employees of the company has been
approved by the Board and changes were made in line with new requirements
stated in revised CCG. The said code of conduct strengthens the standard for
professional business-like behavior expected from directors and employees and
binds them to demonstrate ethical, honest and responsible attitude. The code
has been disseminated across the company to all directors and employees for
their information compliance.

Before each meeting of the board of directors a closed period is declared by the
company during which directors, CEO executives of the company and their
spouses are not allowed to trade in shares of the company in any manner,
whether directly or indirectly. The Board has reviewed the status of executives in
terms of clause (xvil) of CCG and has set threshold defining categories of
management employees as executive's consequent to which they are subject to
additional regulatory requirements for trading and disclosing their transactions in
company shares.

The directors of the company are fully aware of their duties and responsibilities
and strive to discharge their fiduciary responsibilities in the best possible manner
in compliance with all applicable corporate laws and regulations.

During the year, the Board was actively involved in performing their duties
including those required to be performed under various laws and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the company with the ultimate
objective of safeguarding the interests of the shareholders, enhancing the
profitability of the company, increasing shareholder's wealth and promoting
market confidence.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

I The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company,
present its state of affairs fairly, the result of its operations, cash flows and
change in equity.

. Proper books of accounts of the company have been maintained.

. Appropriate accounting policies have been applied in preparation of
financial statements and any change in accounting policies have been
disclosed in the financial statements. The accounting estimates are based
reasonable and prudent judgment.
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V. International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have
been followed in preparation of financial statements and any departure
there from has been adequately disclosed and explained.

V. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored.

Vi. There are no significant doubts upon the company's ability to continue as
a going concern.

Vii. Key operating and financial data of last six years has been given in the
annual report.

vii.  Information about outstanding taxes, duties, levies and charges is given in
the notes to the accounts.

IX. Significant plans and decisions regarding corporate restructuring, business

expansion and discontinue operations along with future prospects, risks and
uncertainties have been disclosed in relevant sections of report.

Code of Conduct

The company has prepared a "Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees"
and approved by the Board.

Priority Standards of Conduct

a. Safety: There can be no production without safety.

b. Quality: To achieve total customer satisfaction by manufacturing and
marketing products that achieve the highest quality levels for any given price
and provide the customers with the best value for their money. We stand to
maximize customer utility for all users of our products by strictly conforming to
all relevant laws and standards, adapting, enhancing and innovating product
attributes to better serve customer needs, continually improving our quality
management systems, and controlling our costs and prices.

c. Productivity: With safety and quality each of us will strive to excel the
performance in all fields of our activities i.e. production, sales & marketing,
planning & development, finance, import, supply chain management, human
resources & administration etc.

Safety, Health and Environment

Beco Steel limited conducts its business with responsibility and in a way to make
sure health, safety and protection from environmental aspects of its associates
and the society. We implement and maintain the programs that provide
reasonable assurance that the business will do the following:

1. To comply with all applicable government and internal health, safety and
environmental requirements
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2. Design facilities and conduct operations in a way that avoids risk to human
health, safety and the environment.

Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

The statement of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is
annexed with the annual report.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Beco Steel Limited is cognizant of its legal and ethical responsibilities towards the
local community where it operates. As such the Board has authorized the
management to exercise its Corporate Social Responsibilities by serving the local
community in the areas of health, education and environmental responsibilities in
accordance with prevailing environmental and health laws.

Staff Retirement Benefits

The company plans to operate an un-funded gratuity scheme covering all
employees whose period of service with the Company is more than one year.

Acknowledgement

We would like to take this opportunity to thank our customer, suppliers and
bankers for their continued support and cooperation towards the progress of the
company. We hope that this support would continue in the future as well.

We would also like to thank our dedicated and talented team of executive, staff
and workers for the hard work put in during the period. We expect continued
efforts from our employees to achieve even better results in the next year and
last, but not the least, the management is thankful to the board for its usual
support and guidance in executing the vision and objective set for the company.

On Behalf of the Board

c%“’“’” Jia G-

Muhammad Ali Shafique Ch Afifa Shafique
(Chief Executive Officer) (Director/Chair Person)

Lahore: 06 October 2022
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CHAIRPERSONS’ REPORT

Review Report by Chairman u/s 192 of The Companies Act, 2017

| am pleased to be part of the management. It will be my job to present the report
on the overall performance of the board and effectiveness of its role in achieving
the company's objectives as well as ensuring overall compliance of Companies
Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019. | would take this opportunity to invite you for the Annual General Meeting
of the company.

The board members are aware of the high level of ethical and professional
standards laid down in our Mission and Vision statements which are adopted by
the company and fully support the same in attaining the objectives.

The composition of Board of Directors reflects mix of varied backgrounds and rich
experiences in the fields of steel business, finance, banking and human resource.
The new board has arranged director training program (DTP) and will be
completed soon.

The board is responsible for management of the company, formulates all
significant policies and strategies. The board acknowledges its responsibility for
Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework and is committed to good
Corporate Governance. The Board is aware of the importance of its role in
achieving the objectives of the company and devoted and focused towards
company's values, mission and vision.

During the financial year 2021-22, the company started its own production. These
financial statements present the results of business of steel and allied products.
Board is optimistic regarding financial performance in future on the basis of
experience and expertise of over decades in steel sector.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our valued customers for their
continued confidence in the company, the financial institutions for their support
and our most valuable employees and executives for their dedication and hard
work and loyalty.

Joba Gebips-
On behalf of the board Afifa Shafique
Lahore: 06 October 2022 (Director/Chairperson)
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STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES

The entire organization of Beco Steel Limited will be guided by the following
principles in all activities to achieve the company's objectives:

Directors:

¢ Commit themselves to all the necessary and appropriate resources;

e Create a conductive environment through healthy and responsive policies;

¢ Maintain organizational effectiveness for the achievement of the company
goals;

e Encourage and support compliance of legal and industry requirements;

e Protect the interest and assets of the company;

Executives and Managers:

e Ensure the profitability of operations;

e Provide the direction and leadership for the organization;

e Ensure total customer satisfaction through excellent product and service;

e Promote a culture of excellence, conversation, and continual improvement;
e Cultivate work ethics and harmony among colleagues and associates;

e Encourage initiative and self-realization in employees through meaningful

e empowerment;

e Ensure an equitable way of working and reward system;

¢ Institute commitment of environmental, health and safety performance

Employees and Staff Will:

e Devote their time and efforts to productive activities;

¢ Observe company policies and regulations;

¢ Promote and protect the interest of the company;

e Exercise prudence in using company resources;

e Observe cost effective practice in daily activities;

e Strive for excellence and quality;

¢ Avoid making personal gain (other than authorized salary and benefits) at the
Company's expenses, participating in or assisting activities which complete
with work of any customer or supplier of Beco Steel Limited (formerly Ravi
Textile Mills Limited) and to hold any interest in a customer, supplier, agent or
competitor.

BECO STEEL LIMITED (ANNUAL REPORT 2022)



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES

Code of Corporate Governance Reqgulations, 2019 as on, 30 June

2022

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the
following manner:

1.

The total number of Directors are Seven (7) as per the following:

a.

Male Five

b.

Female Two

2.

The composition of Board of Directors is as follows:

Category Numbers Names

Independent Directors 2

Mr. Muhammad Hashim Tareen
Mr. Mahmood Aslam

Non-Executive Directors 3 Miss Eman Shafique

Mr. Asim Raza

Miss Afifa Shafique

Executive Directors 2

Mr Ali Shafique Ch
Mr Waheed Akbar

Miss Eman Shafique

Female Directors 2 Miss Afifa Shafique

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on
more than seven listed companies, including this Company.

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the
Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall Corporate
Strategy and significant policies of the Company. The Board has ensured
that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on
relevant matters have been taken by Board/shareholders as empowered
by the relevant provisions of the Act and these regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in
absence, by a director elected by the board for this purpose. The Board
has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of
Board.

BECO STEEL LIMITED (ANNUAL REPORT 2022)



8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for
remunerations of directors in accordance with the Act and these
Regulations.

9. Majority of the Board has attained Directors Training Program; however,
one Independent Director will undergo training in due course of time.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and
Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations.

11. Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the
Financial Statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
a) Audit Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Muhammad Hashim Tareen Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Asim Raza Member
Miss Eman Shafique Member
b) HR and Remuneration Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Muhammad Hashim Tareen Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Asim Raza Member
Miss Eman Shafique Member
Mr. Ali Shafique Ch Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed,
documented and advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committees
were as per following:

Meeting Frequency

Audit Committee Four meetings of Audit Committee
were held during the financial year
ended 30 June 2022.

HR and Remuneration Committee One meeting of H&R Committee was
held during the financial year ended
30 June 2022.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

The Board has set up an effective Internal Audit Function which is
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have
been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines
on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are
not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of
internal audit, company secretary or director of the company.

The Statutory Auditors or the persons associated with them have not been
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act,
these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors
have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.
We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been
complied with.

On Behalf of the board

St —

Muhammad Ali Shafique Ch

Chief Executive Officer

Lahore: 06 October 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the
Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Beco Steel Limited (“the
Company”) for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of
Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement
of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the
provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any
noncompliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan
the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers
all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of
Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to
believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the
Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained
in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,

2022. U
Lahore Tariq Abdul Ghani Magbool & Co.
Date: October 06, 2022 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: CR202210055UXBjxtgoy

BECO STEEL LIMITED (ANNUAL REPORT 2022)



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of BECO STEEL LIMITED (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022
and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, statement of profit
or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in
the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of
the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the profit, its comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit maters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit mater:

Sr
No.
1 Revenue recognition

The Company's revenue comprises
mainly of local sales which is earned
from various customer segments with
significant volume of revenue
transactions.

The recognition of revenue depends on
the nature of contractual
arrangements with the customers.

Key Audit Matters

We identified revenue recognition and
it's  reporting in the financial
statements as a key audit matter
primarily due to significant increase in
revenue from last year, signifi-cant
volume of transactions, and the

amount of audit efforts in relation to
this area. (Refer to note 24 and
6.12 for accounting policy and
relevant disclosures respectively in

respect of revenue).

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures included the following:
-We performed a range of audit
procedures in relation to revenue including
review of the terms and conditions of distinct
sale fransactions with different customer
segments and assessed the appropriateness
of revenue recognition policies and
practices followed by the Company.

-We tested controls over revenue recognition
and reporting process including key IT
application controls, IT dependent manual
controls and IT general controls for the
relevant IT systems used for revenue transaction
processing by the Company.

-We performed analytical review procedures
and other test of details over various revenue
streams including the cut-off procedures to
check thatrevenue has been recognized in
the appropriate accounting period.

-We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
as per the guidelines set out in the
applicable financial reporting requirements.
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] 2 Recoverability and recognition of deferred tax asset

As disclosed in note 1002 to
the accompanying financial
statements, the Company has
recognized deferred tax asset on
unused business losses and
unabsorbed depreciation amounting
to Rs. 49.119 million. In order to ascertain
that sufficient future taxable profit
wil be available, the management
has prepared future projections of
taxable profit by taking into account
various assumptions mainly comprising
of future steel bar prices, average
inflation and exchange rates,
growth rate and timing of reversals.
The analysis of the  recognition
and recoverability of the deferred tax
asset was significant to our audit
because of the significant value of
deferred tax asset and the assessment

of future taxable income involves
significant management
judgement about future business

and economic factors.

Our audit procedures among others
included obtaining an understanding of the
process and controls in this area relevant to
our audit.

-We evaluated the appropriateness of
the components on which the Company has
recognized deferred tax asset in light of the
requirements of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, considering the factors including age
and the expiry of the deferred tax asset and tax
rates enacted.

-We evaluated the Company's assumptions
and estimates in relation to the likelihood of
generating future taxable income, principally
by performing sensitivity analysis and testing
the key assumptions used by the management.

-We have dalso assessed the adequacy of
the Company's disclosures in accordance with
relevant laws as applicable in Pakistan.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include

the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
maters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realist alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
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the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

e Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other maters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other maters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the maters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those
maters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit maters. We describe these
maters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the mater or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
mater should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (X IX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

C) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the
year were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Suhr Ordinance, 1980
(XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Shahid Mehmood.

A%

Lahore Tariq Abdul Ghani Magbool & Co.
Date: October 06, 2022 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: CR202210055UXBjxtgoy
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

2022 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees
Share capital and reserves
Authorzed share capital:
150,000,000 (2021: 150,000,000) ordinary
of Rs. 10/- each 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 7 1,249,625,100 250,000,000
Share Premium 1,999,250,200 -
Loan from directors 8 217,072,420 40,742,220
Rewvenue reserve 9 2,000,000 2,000,000
Accumulated losses (113,808,140] (304,329,379
3,361,139,580 (4,587,159)
Non current liabilities
Deffered Liabilities 10 - -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payable 11 1,105,942,115 3,429,436
Accrued mark up 12 850,000 850,000
Unclaimed dividend 1,034,090 1,034,090
Prowvision for taxation 13 79,297,005 3,879,557
1,187,123,210 9,193,083
Contingencies and commitments 14 - -
4,548,2462,790 4,605,924
ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 16 3,014,759,336 -
Long term deposits 450,000 -
Deferred tax asset 10.02 49,119,289 -
49,569,289 -
3,064,328,625 -
Current assets
Stock in tfrade 458,151,183 -
Stores spares and loose fools 819,832 -
Trade debts 17 901,779,197 -
Loan and advances 18 - -
Income tax due from Government 19 86,587,437 2,161,876
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 20 160,000 -
Other receivables 21 - 60,245
Short term investment 22 1,103,997 1,009,088
Cash and bank balances 23 35,332,519 1,374,715
1,483,934,165 4,605,924
4,548,262,790 4,605,924

The annexed notes from 01 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements. \y

Chief Executive Officer g% Director ?;1;"/
o
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Sales

Less: Sales tax

Net sales

Cost of Sales

Gross profit / (10ss)
Operating expenses:
Administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses

Other expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Profit from operations
Finance cost

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after tax for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
24 7,383,074,534 252,173,181
(1,072,754,429) (21,402,991)
6,310,320,105 230,770,190
25 (6,014,357,200) (226,741,864)
295,962,905 4,028,326
26 (43,874,558) (15,273,926)
27 (15,775,800) (1,844,454)
28 (16,302,077) (2,644,306)
(75,952,435) (19,762,686)
220,010,470 (15,734,360)
29 94,909 22,311,482
220,105,379 6,577,122
30 (145,473) (296,308)
219,959,906 6,280,814
31 (29,438,667) (3,957,423)
190,521,239 2,323,391
32 4.45 0.09

The annexed notes from 01 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
Profit for the year 190,521,239 2,323,391
Other comprehensice income:
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss - -
Items that may be reclassified to statement of profit or loss: - ‘ | -
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 190,521,239 2,323,391

The annexed notes from 01 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

%-4_» al :

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

(Rupees)
Revenue
reserve
. . Loan from Accumulated .
Share capital ||Share Premium directors General loss / profit Total equity
reserve
Balance as at 30 June 2020 250,000,000 66,586,220 9,000,000 (306,652,770) 18,933,450
Profit for the year ended 30 June ) ) ) 2323391 2,323,391
2021
Other comprehensive income for . ) ) ) )
the year
Loan from directors repaid - (35,175,000) - - (35,175,000)
Loan from directors - 9,331,000 - - 9,331,000
Balance as at 30 June 2021 250,000,000 - 40,742,220 9,000,000 (304,329,379) (4,587,159)
Profit for the year ended 30 June . ) ) 190,521,239 190,521,239
2022
Other comprehensive income for : ) ) ) )
the year
Increase in share capital 999,625,100 - 999,625,100
Share premium on issuance of 1,099,250.200 1,999,250.200
shares
Loan from directors repaid - - - - -
Loan from directors - 176,330,200 - - 176,330,200
Balance as at 30 June 2022 1,249,625,100  1,999,250,200 217,072,420 9,000,000 (113,808,140) 3,361,139,580

The annexed notes from 01 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note Rupees Rupees
Profit for the year before taxation 219,959,906 6,280,814
Adjustments for following items:
Loss on sale of fixed assets - 609,503
Depreciation 12,406,065 387,797
Provision for workers' profit participation fund 11,813,099 351,764
Provision for workers' welfare fund 4,488,978 128,180
Allowance for expected credit l0ss - 1,376,324
Advances to suppliers written off - 178,533
Staff retrement benefits - 254,986
Finance cost 30 145,473 296,308
28,853,615 3,583,395

Operating profit before working capital changes 248,813,521 9,864,209
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stock in trade (458,151,183) -
Stores, spares and loose tools (819,832) -
Trade debts - unsecured but considered good (901,779,197) (1,376,324)
Loan and advances - (178,533)
Due from Government - 1,636,935
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (160,000) 2,870
Other receivables 60,245 767,373
Short term investment (94,909) (59,774)

(1,360,944,876) 792,547

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables

1,086,166,631 || (112,241,917)|

1,086,166,631 (112,241,917)

Cash generated from operations (25,964,723)  (101,585,161)
Finance cost paid (101,502) (21,778)
Staff retrement benefits paid - (3,996,873)
WPPF Paid - (9,353,464)
WWF Paid - (735,806)
Income tax paid (87,566,069) (5,283,786)
(87,667,571) (19,391,707)

Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(113,632,295)  (120,976,868)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 2,899,500
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (28,290,101) (3,896,800)
Security deposit (450,000) 1,115,000
Net cash (used in) / generating from investing activities (28,740,101) 117,700
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan received / (paid) to directors 176,330,200 (25,844,000)
Net cash flows generated from / (used in) financing activities 176,330,200 (25,844,000)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 33,957,804 (146,703,168)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,374,715 148,077,883
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 35,332,519 1,374,715

The annexed notes from 01 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements. \y
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022:

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.01 M/s Beco Steel Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan
under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are
quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity of the Company is
manufacturing of steel and allied products along with ancillary activities thereto.

1.02 ISSUANCE OF SHARES BY WAY OF OTHER THAN RIGHT OFFER, AND FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER

THAN CASH AGAINST ACQUISITION OF NON-CASH ASSETS INCLUDING LAND, BUILDING, PLANT
AND MACHINERY
SECP vide its letter No. EMD/CI/80/2008/58 dated 31 January 2022, approved the issuance of
99,962,510 ordinary shares of the Company, having par value of PKR 10/- each, at a premium
of PKR 20/- per share, for total value of PKR 2,998,875,300/- by way of other than right offer
against consideration of non-cash assets, including land, building, and plant & machinery.
The process of transfer of non-cash assets including land and building, and plant & machinery
has been completed. Further, title of land has also been transferred in the name of company.
Ordinary Shares numbering 99,962,510 @ Rs. 10 per Share with premium Rs. 20 per Share against
consideration other than cash (i.e land, building, and plant &machinery) have been issued on
27 April 2022, and the process stands completed in all respects.

During the reporting period, the company operated on its own manufacturing faciity to
produce steel and allied products for approximately two months.

2  GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

The registered office of the Company is situated at Floret Luxury Apartment G-7, Ground Floor,
127- Ahmad Block, Garden Town Lahore, Pakistan.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.01 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from
the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have
been followed.

3.02 New Standards, Amendments, Improvements To Approved Accounting Standards And
The Framework For Financial Reporting

Amendments to approved accounting standards and the framework for financial
reporting that became effective during the current year

Amendment of Framework

IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
(Amendments)

IFRS 16 - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments)

The adoption of above amendments to the approved accounting standards and the
framework for financial reporting did not have any material impact on the Company's
financial statements.
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3.03 Standards, amendments and improvements to the approved accounting standards
that are not yet effective
The following amendments and improvements to the approved accounting

standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned
below against the respective amendment or improvements:

Effective date
(Annual periods
beginning on or

after)

Standard or Interpretation

IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments) 1 January 2022

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended 1 January 2022
Use (Amendments)

IAS37 Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulling a Contract 1 January 2022
(Amendments)

IAS 1 Classification of Liabiltes as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
(Amendments)

IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments) 1 January 2023

IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments) 1 January 2023

IAS 12 Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a 1 January 2023
single transaction (Amendments)

IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Not yet finalised

/1AS 28 Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments)

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the 1ASB (2018-2020 cycle)

IFRS9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the '10 percent' test for 1 January 2022
derecognition of financial liabilities

IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements 1 January 2022
IFRS 16 Leases: Lease incentives 1 January 2022

The above standards and amendments and improvements are not expected to
have any material impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be
notied by the SECP for the purpose of applicabiity in Pakistan and are not
expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial statements in the

Effective date
(Annual periods

Standard or Interpretation S
beginning on or

after)
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting 1 January 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

4 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Iltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the functional
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial
statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
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5  BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention In these financials
statements, except for the amounts reflected in the statement of cash flows, all transactions have
been accounted on accrual basis.

6  Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas
where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or
where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

6.01 Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic
benefits are based on the analysis of the management of the Company. Further, the
Company reviews the value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change
in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of operating
fixed assets, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

6.02 Inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling
prices less estimated expenditure to make sales.

6.03 Income tax

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management
takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on
certain issues in the past.

6.04 Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and
judgement. It is based on the lifetime expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue,
and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate for each group. These
assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates.

6.05 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
a) Cost

These are initially stated at cost. Subsequently, these are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, except for freehold land which is
stated at cost less impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss
applying the reducing balance method at the rates disclosed in note 16 to the financial
statements. Depreciation is charged from the month in which an asset is available for use,
upto the date of disposal.

Cost of operating fixed assets signifies historical cost, revalued amount, directly attributable
costs of bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the management and borrowing cost that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's gross carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arisihng on revaluation of operating fixed assets are
recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in surplus on
revaluation of operating fixed assets in shareholders' equity. To the extent that increase
reverses a decrease previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all
other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the
statement of profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is
reclassified from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets to retained earnings.

b) Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on the reducing balance method so as to write off the
cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at the given rates. The residual value, useful life of
an asset and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
impact on depreciation is significant. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in
which the assets are avaiable for use and on deletions up to the month in which the assets
are deleted.

c) De-recognition
An item of operating fixed assets is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arisihng on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period the asset is de-recognized.

6.06 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each reporting date for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not
be recoverable. If such indication exists, and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The resulting impairment
loss is taken to the statement of profit or loss except for impairment loss on revalued assets,
which is adjusted against the related revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss
does not exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset.

6.07 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which these are incurred except to
the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing cost, if any, are capitalized as part of the cost
of that asset.

6.08 Inventories

Inventories except for stock in transit and waste stock are stated at lower of cost and net
realizable value.

6.09 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Useable stores and spares are valued at moving average cost, while items considered
obsolete are carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice values
plus other charges paid thereon.

6.10 Stock-in-trade

Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods are determined as follows:

For raw materials - at average cost
For work-in-process and finshed - at average manufacturing cost including portion of
goods production overheads.

Materials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice values plus other charges paid
thereon. Waste stock is valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make a sale.
6.11 Taxation
a) Current

Provision for current tax is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising
from assessments framed during the year for such years.
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b) Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences
arising from difference between the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

6.12 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The standard provides a single comprehensive model for revenue recognition. The core
principle of the standard is that an entity shall recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard
introduced a new contract-based revenue recognition model with a measurement approach
that is based on an allocation of the transaction price.

This is described further in the accounting policies below. Credit risk is presented separately as
an expense rather than adjusted against revenue. Contracts with customers are presented in
Company's statement of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a
receivable, depending on the relationship between the Company's performance and the
customer's payment. Customer acquisition costs and costs to fulfi a contract can, subject to
certain criteria, be capitalized as an asset and amortized over the contract period.

Key areas in accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15 are as follows:
a) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is
expected to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. For each
contract with a customer, the Company: identifies the contract with a customer; identifies the
performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which takes into
account estimates of variable consideration and the time value of money; allocates the
transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-
alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and recognizes revenue
when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services promised.

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the
customer such as discounts, rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the
customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined using either the
‘expected value' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration is
subject to a constraining principle whereby revenue will only be recognized to the extent that
it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized
will not occur. The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Amounts received that are subject to the
constraining principle are initially recognized as deferred revenue in the form of a separate
refund liability.

b) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods, which is generally at the time of delivery.

C) Interest
Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a
method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest
income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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d)

e)

f)

9)

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

Other revenue

Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is
established.

Contract assets

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring
goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.
Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which
the Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is
made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its
performance obligations under the contract.

Refund liabilities

Refund liabilities are recognized where the Company receives consideration from a customer
and expects to refund some, or all, of that consideration to the customer. A refund liability is
measured at the amount of consideration received or receivable for which the Company
does not expect to be entitled and is updated at the end of each reporting period for
changes in circumstances. Historical data is used across product lines to estimate such returns
at the time of sale based on an expected value methodology.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company has an unfunded gratuity scheme for all of its employees who have completed
the qualifying period as defined under the scheme. As per gratuity scheme, employees of the
Company are entitled to gratuity equivalent to last drawn salary multiplied by the numbers of
year of service up to the date of leaving the Company. The liabilty recognized in the
statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit obligation is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less fair value of plan assets, if
any. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method. Provision is made annually to cover obligations under the
scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation and is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Re
measurement of the net defined benefit liability, including actuarial gains and losses are
recognized immediately in statement of comprehensive income. Past-service costs are
recognized immediately in income.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

The standard introduced new classification and measurement models for financial assets. A
financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified
dates and that are solely principal and interest.
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A debt instrument shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ff it is
held within a business model whose objective is to both hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates that are solely principal and interest as
well as selling the asset on the basis of its fair value. All other financial assets are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the Company makes an irevocable
election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity instruments in other
comprehensive income. Despite these requirements, a financial asset may be irevocably
designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss to reduce the effect of, or
eliminate, an accounting mismatch. For financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, the standard requires the portion of the change in fair value that relates to the
Company's own credit risk to be presented in other comprehensive income (unless it would
create an accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge accounting requirements are intended
to more closely align the accounting treatment with the risk management activities of the
Company. New impairment requirements use an 'expected credit loss' (ECL) model to
recognize an allowance. Impairment is measured using a 12-month ECL method unless the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition in which
case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. For receivables, a simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance is available.

i) Recognition of financial instruments

The Company initially recognizes financial assets on the date when they are originated.
Financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date when the entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” for the classificaton and measurement of financial liabilities. However, it
replaces the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets i.e. loans and receivables, fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL), available for sale and held to maturity with the categories
such as amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

Investments and other financial assets
a) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair Value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortized cost

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in
equity instruments, this wil depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company
reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arisihng on derecognition is
recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other income / (other expenses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of
impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses), interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in
other income / (other expenses).

Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
other income/ (other expenses) and impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is
recognized in profit or loss and presented net within other income / (other expenses) in
the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value for financial
instruments quoted in an active market, the fair value corresponds to a market price (level 1).
For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair value is determined
using valuation techniques including reference to recent arm’s length market transactions or
transactions involving financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or
discounted cash flow analysis including, to the greatest possible extent, assumptions consistent
with observable market data (level 3).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Fair value through profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized in other income/ (other expenses) in the statement of profit or loss as
applicable.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other
income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.
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Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is
also included in profit or loss.

i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with
its debt instruments carried at amortzed cost and FVTOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade debts and other receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach
permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recognition of the receivables.

iv) De-recognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred
asset. Any interest in such derecognized financial assets that is created or retained by
the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its
statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements when there is a legal enforceable right to set off and the Company
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Hedge accounting

IFRS 9 requires that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk management
objectives and strategy and to apply a more qualitative and forward-looking approach to
assessing hedge effectiveness.

There is no impact of the said change on these financial statements as there is no hedge
activity carried on by the Company during the year ended 30 June 2022.

6.17 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognized at farr value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance for expected credit
losses. Trade receivables generally do not include amounts over due by 365 days.

The Company has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

Other receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit
losses.
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6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and
deposit accounts and other short term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

Earnings per share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence wil only be confimed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent
assets are not recognized until their realization becomes certain.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past
events whose existence wil only be confrmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent
liabilities are not recognized, only disclosed, unless the possibiity of a future outflow of
resources is considered remote. In the event that the outflow of resources associated with a
contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow can be reliably
estimated, a provision is recognized in the financial statements.

Borrowings

Financing and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received,
net of transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Related party transactions and transfer pricing
Transactions with related parties are based on the transfer pricing policy that all transactions
between the Company and the related party of the Company are at arm's length prices
using the comparable uncontrolled price method except in circumstances where it is in the
interest of the Company not to do so.
Related parties

a) Directors and key management personnel

b)  Chaudhary Steel Re-rolling Mills Limited.

C)  AliEnterprises
Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is
normally the transaction cost.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend to the shareholders is recognized in the period in which it is declared and other
appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board of
Directors.
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2022 2021
7  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL Note Rupees Rupees

25,000,000 (2021: 25,000,000) ordinary shares

of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash 7.01 250,000,000 250,000,000
99,962,510 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each issued against
consideration other than cash 7.02 999,625,100 -
1,249,625,100 250,000,000

7.01 Fully paid ordinary shares, which have a par value Rs. 10/-, carry one vote per share and
carry right to dividends.

7.02 SECP vide its letter No. EMD/CI/80/2009/58 dated January 31, 2022 approved the issuance of
99,962,510 ordinary shares of the company having par value of Rs. 10 per share, at a
premium of Rs. 20 per share in aggregate amounting to equivalent of Rs. 2,998,875,300/- (i.e.
par value of shares Rs. 999,625,100 and value of share premium Rs. 1,999,250,200) by the way
of other than right offer against consideration of non cash assets, including land, building and
plant and machinery. The process of issuance of shares has been completed during the year,
and non cash assets, including land, building and plant and machinery has been transfered
to the company.

2022 2021
8  LOAN FROM DIRECTORS Note Rupees Rupees
Loan from directors 8.01 217,072,420 40,742,220
8.01 Opening balance 40,742,220 66,586,220
Loan obtained during the year 176,330,200 9,331,000
Loan repaid during the year - (35,175,000)
Closing balance 217,072,420 40,742,220

8.02 These are interest free loans from directors of the Company payable at the discretion of the
entity. They do not pass the liability test and thus recorded as equity at face value. They will
not be re-measured subsequently. The decision by the entity at any time in future to deliver
cash or any other financial asset to settle the directors' loan would be direct debit to equity as
per TR-32 'Accounting Directors' Loan' issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

2022 2021
9 REVENUE RESERVE Note Rupees Rupees
Revenue reserve- general reserve 9,000,000 9,000,000

10 DEFFERED LIABITIES

Staff retrement benefits 10.01 - -
Deffered taxation 10.02 - -
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10.01 STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Details of the staff retrement benefit-obligation are as follows:

Amounts recognized in the statement of

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Movement in net liability

Net liability at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year

Benefits paid during the year

Closing balance

2022
Rupees

2021
Rupees

3,741,887
254,986
(3,996,873)

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the year

Current service cost
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation

Benefits paid during the year

3,741,887

254,986

3,996,873

(3,996,873)

During the year under report, no employee completed the qualifying period as
defined under the scheme, therefore, there was no staff retrement benefits obligation

as at year end.

10.02 DEFERRED TAXATION Note

Deferred taxation comprises of the following:

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary
differences

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences:

Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for doubtful debts other receivables
Provision for advances

Tax losses

Net deferred tax liability/(asset)
Deferred tax liability / (asset) not recognized
Deferred tax liability / (asset) - recognized

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
13,113,373 -
- 462,141
- 3,285,990
- 51,662
62,232,662 67,548,415
62,232,662 71,348,208
(49,119,289) (71,348,208)
- 71,348,208

(49,119,289)

10.03 Deferred tax has been calculated using tax rates applicable on tax year 2023 under
the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 to the extent of income of the company

chargable under normal tax regime.

Note

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors
Due to related parties

Workers’ profit participation fund
Workers’ welfare fund

Accrued liabilities

11.01
11.02

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

1,010,825,382 -

650,217 -
12,208,834 351,764
4,488,978 128,180
77,768,704 2,949,492
1,105,942,115 3,429,436
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12

13

14

15

16

16.02

Note 2022 2021
11.01 Workers' profit participation fund Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 351,764 9,078,934
Provision for the year 11,813,099 351,764
Mark up on W.P.P.F. 43,971 274,530
12,208,834 9,705,228
Payment /adjustment during the year - (9,353,464)
12,208,834 351,764
11.02 Workers’ welfare fund
Opening balance 128,180 735,806
Provision for the year 4,488,978 128,180
4,617,158 863,986
Payment/reversal during the year (128,180) (735,806)
4,488,978 128,180
ACCRUED MARKUP

Bank Alfalah Limited 850,000 850,000
850,000 850,000

PROVISION FOR TAXATION
Opening balance 3,879,557 5,205,920
Add: taxation - current 78,879,001 3,461,553
82,758,558 8,667,473
Less: tax payments / adjustments during the year (3,461,553) (4,787,916)
79,297,005 3,879,557

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

14.01 Contingencies
There were no contigencies as at the year end.
14.02 Commitments
There were no commitments as at the year end (2021: Nil).

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits 450,000

450,000

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets - owned 16.01 3,014,759,336
3,014,759,336

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as un
Cost of sales 25 12,070,975
Administrative Expenses 26 335,090
12,406,065
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17

17.01

18

18.01

19

20

21

21.01

Note
TRADE DEBTS
Considered good:
Unsecured
Considered doubtful:
Others - unsecured

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 17.01

Allowance for expected credit loss

Opening balance
Allowance for expected credit loss provided during the
year

Closing balance
Balances written off

LOAN AND ADVANCES

Considered good, unsecured:
Considered doubtful:

Advances to suppliers

Less: provision for doubtful advances

Allowance for expected credit loss

Opening balance

Allowance for expected credit loss provided during the
year

Closing balance

Balances written off

INCOME TAX DUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Advance income tax

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Prepayments

OTHER RECEIVABLE

Considered good, unsecured:
Accrued profit on saving bank account
Considered doubtful

Less: allowance for expected credit
losses

Closing balance

Allowance for expected credit loss

Opening balance
Allowance for expected credit loss provided during the
year

Closing balance
Balances written off

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
901,779,197 -

- 1,593,591

- (1,593,591)

901,779,197 -
1,593,591 217,267
- 1,376,324
1,593,591 1,593,591

(1,593,591) -

- 1,593,591

- 178,145

- (178,145)

178,145 178,145
178,145 178,145
(178,145) -

- 178,145
86,587,437 2,161,876
86,587,437 2,161,876

160,000 -
160,000 -

- 60,245

- 11,330,999

- (11,330,999)

- 60,245
11,330,999 11,330,999
11,330,999 11,330,999

(11,330,999) -
- 11,330,999
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Note
22 SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
Term deposit receipt
Add: profit accrued during the vear

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
925,542 925942
178,055 83,146
1,103,997 1,009,088

22.01 This term deposit receipt issued by banking company has maturity period of one year and

carries profit at the rate 10.25% per annum.

Note 2022 2021
23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand 19,138,672 62,568
Cash at banks:
- In current accounts 15,147,593 265,893
- In saving accounts 2301 1,046,254 1,046,254
35,332,519 1,374,715
23.01 These carry profit ranging from 7.50% to 11.50% (2021: 7.50% to 10.50%) per annum
Note 2022 2021
24  SALES - NET Rupees Rupees
Sales 7,383,074,534 252,173,181
Less: Sales tax (1,072,754,429) (21,402,991)
Net Sales 6,310,320,105 230,770,190
25 COST OF SALES
Raw material consumed 2501 5,445,470,611 215,978,005
Salaries, wages and others benefits 298,902,389 2,524,541
Stores and spares 18,471,541 1,272,764
Fuel and power 405,742,374 856,222
Repair and maintenance 16,843,218 2,273,069
Depreciation 12,070,975
Other factory overheads 4,528,788 3,837,263
6,202,049,896 226,741,864
Work in process
Opening inventory - -
Closing inventory (25,648,415) -
(25,648,415) -
Cost of goods manufactured 6,176,401,481 226,741,864
Finished goods
Opening inventory - -
Closing inventory (162,044,281) -
(162,044,281) -
Cost of sales 6,014,357,200 226,741,864
25.01 Raw Material Consumed
Opening - -
Purchases 5,715,949,098
5,715,949,098 -
Closing (270,458,487) -
5,445,490,611 -
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26

27

28

29

30

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits
Rent, rates and taxes
Postage and telephone
Electricity, gas and water
Printing and stationery
Repair and maintenance
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional
Auditors’ remuneration
Fee and subscription
Entertainment
Depreciation
Miscellaneous

26.01 Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fee
Review of interim financial information
Other certifications

Out of pocket expenses
Free float CDC share certificate

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION
Salaries and other benefits
Carriage and transport

OTHER EXPENSES

Loss on sale of fixed assets

Provision for workers’ profit participation fund
Provision for workers' welfare fund
Allowance for expected credit loss
Advances to suppliers written off

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
- Profit on saving bank account

FINANCE COST

Interest on workers’ profit participation fund
Bank charges

Note 2022
Rupees

15,465,398

4,217,500

368,987

913,488

504,223

37,000

3,748,123

11,040,651

26.01 1,630,000
4,854,654

562,488

7.02 335,090
196,956

43,874,558

2021
Rupees

3,194,586
776,630
176,027
250,278
559,040

68,135
149,608
795,842

1,005,098

7,706,750
132,638
387,797

71,497

1,200,000
250,000
100,000

30,000
50,000

15,273,926

1,630,000

700,000
124,598
50,000

20,000
110,500

Note 2022
Rupees
2,341,514
13,434,286

1,005,098

15,775,800

2021
Rupees
1,844,454

11.01 11,813,099
11.02 4,488,978

1,844,454

16,302,077

609,505
351,764

128,180
1,376,324

178,533

94,909

2,644,306

94,909

22,311,482

43,971
101,502

22,311,482

145,473

274,530
21,778

296,308

BECO STEEL LIMITED (ANNUAL REPORT 2022)



Note 2022 2021
31 TAXATION Rupees Rupees
- Current year 31.01 78,879,001 3,461,553
- Prior years (321,045) 495,870
78,557,956 3,957,423
Deferred tax 10.03 (49,119,289) -
29,438,667 3,957,423

31.01 Provision for current income tax is made under the relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. Numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable
tax rate has not been presented being impracticable.

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Basic Earnings per share:
Profit after taxation Rupees 190,521,239 2,323,391
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number 42,801,543 25,000,000
Profit per share — basic and diluted Rupees 4.45 0.09

32.01 There has been no effect of diution on earnings per share during the year as the Company

33

had no such commitments.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise associated companies, directors and key management personnel. The
Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Details
of the transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

) ) 2022 2021
Loan from directors Nature of transaction
Rupees Rupees
Ch. Muhammad Shafique Directors' loan received 176,330,200 9,331,000
Ali Enterprises Purchases 43,648,106 -
Chaudhary Steel Re- Rolling
Mills Limited Purchases 1,009,962,111 -

34 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, allowances,
including all benefits to chief executive of the Company is as follows:

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Managerial remuneration 1,300,000 595,000
Allowances:
Reimbursement - Travelling -
Utilities - -
1,300,000 595,000

Number of persons

34.1 Noremuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.

1

1

34.2 No employee of the Company falls under the definition of executive given in Forth Schedule of
the Companies Act, 2017.
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2022 2021
35 NUMBER OF EMPLO YEES Number Number
Average number of employees during the year 150 6
Number of employees as at year end 160 6
2022 2021
36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY Note Rupees Rupees
Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Long term deposits 450,000 -
Trade debts Q01,779,197 -
Loans and adwvances - -
Short term investment 1,103,997 1,009,088
Trade depaosits 160,000 -
Other receivables - 60,245
Cash and bank baances 35,332,519 1,374,715
938,825,713 2,444,048

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Trade and other payables 1,089,244,303 2,949,492
Accrued interest/mark-up 850,000 850,000
Unclaimed dividend 1,034,090 1,034,090

1,091,128,393 4,833,582

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

- Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabiity in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Underlying
the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is going concern and there is
no intention or requirements to curtal materially the scale of its operation or to undertake a
transaction on adwverse terms.

- The carrying wvalues of all financial assets and liakbilities reflected in the financial statements
approximate their fair values.
Fair value hierarchy

Following are three levels in fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in measurement of fair values of financial instfruments.

Lewvel 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted] in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within lewvel 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for asset or liabiity that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

36.01 Financial Instruments measured at fair value
346.01.01 Recurring fair value measurements

There are no recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

34.01.02 Non-recurring fair value measurements

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.
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36.02 Financial Instruments not measured at fair value

The management considers the carrying amount of all financial instruments not
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period to approximate their fair
values as at the reporting date.

36.03 Assets and liabilities other than financial instruments

36.03.01 Recurring fair value measurements

For recurring fair value measurements, the fair value hierarchy and information about
how their fair values are determined are as follows:

The Company does not hold any instrument which could be included in Level 1, Level 2 and

Level 3.

36.03.02 Non-recurring fair value measurements

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

37  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

37.01 Financial risk factors

(@

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s finance department under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. The Company’s finance department evaluates and
hedges financial risks. The Board provides principles for overall rsk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk, use of non derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity.

Market risk

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future
commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign
currencies.

The Company is not exposed to currency risk as almost all of its transactions are in local
currency and no foreign currency receivables and payables exist at the reporting date.

Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrument
traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity and commodity price risks.

Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profie of the Company’s interest bearing financial
instruments was:

Note 2022 2021
Floating rate instruments Rupees Rupees
Financial assets
Bank balance - saving account 1,046,254 1,046,254
Fixed rate instruments
Short term investment 1,103,997 1,009,088
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables
held constant, profit after taxation for the year would have been Rs. 10,463 (2021: Rs. 10,463)
higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest income on floating rate financial
assets. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and liabilities outstanding at
the reporting dates were outstanding for the whole year.

Fair value analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss
of the Company.

(b)  Creditrisk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to the financial instruments will cause a financial
loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amounts of financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was as follows:

2021 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Deposits 450,000 -
Other receivable - 60,245
Short term investment 1,103,997 1,009,088
Cash and bank balances 35,332,519 1,374,715
36,886,516 2,444,048

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings (If available) or to historical information about counterparty
default rate:

Rating
Banks Agency
Short term Long term
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Habib Metropolitan
Bank Limited PACRA AL+ AA*
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA-
JS Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA-
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-1+ AAA
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AAA
Short term investment
[Bank Alfalah Limited | PACRA || AL+ | | AA+ |

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after
giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-
performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the
credit risk is minimal.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities.

At 30 June 2022, the Company has Rupees 16.193 million (2021: Rupees 1.31 million) bank
balances. Management believes the liquidity risk to be low. Following are the contractual
maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. The amount disclosed in the table
are undiscounted cash flows:
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2022.

30-Jun-22 Carrying Contractual 6 months or less || 6-12 months || 1-2 years More than 2
Amount cash flows years
Rupees
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Trade and other 1089244303 | 1089244303 |  1,089,244,303 . . -
payables
|Accrued markup | 850,000 | 850,000 | 850,000 | - - -]
|Unclaimed dividend | 1,034,090 | 1,034,090 | 1,034,090 | - ] ]
1,091,128,393 1,091,128,393 1,091,128,393 - - -
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2021.
30-Jun-21 Carrying Contractual 6 months or less || 6-12 months || 1-2 years More than 2
Amount cash flows years
Rupees
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Trade and other 2,949,492 2,949,492 2,949,492 - - -
payables
|Accrued mark-up | 850,000 | 850,000 | 850,000 | - - - |
|Unclaimed dividend || 1034090 | 1034000 |  10340% | ] ] -]
4,833,582 4,833,582 4,833,582 - - -
38 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The
Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares.
39 SHARIAHSCREENING DISCLOSURE
2022 2021
Conwentional Sharla_h Conwentional Shana_h
Compliant Compliant
(Rupees in '000")
Bank Balances 1,046,254 15,147,593 1,046,254 265,893
Profit on bank deposits 94,909 - 22,311,482 -
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE

GEARING RATIO 2022 2021
(Rupees in '000") (Rupees in '000")
Cash and bank balance 35,332,519 1,374,715
Debt - -
Total Equity 3,361,139,580 (4,587,159)
Total capital employeed 3,361,139,580 (4,587,159)
Gearing Ratio (%) Nil Nil
PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 2022 2021
Metric Tons Metric Tons
Plant Capacity
Melting 86,450 -
Re-rolling 84,000 -
Installed capacity:
Melting 33,210 -
Re-rolling 31,190 -

PROPOSED AND DECLARED DIVIDEND

The board of directors in its meeting held on October 06, 2022, proposed a final cash dividend
Rs. 01 per share i.e. 10% (2021: Nil) to minority shareholders only except sponsor shareholders,
subject to approval of the members at forthcomming Annual General Meeting to be held on
October 28, 2022.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 06 October 2022 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the
purpose of better presentation and comparison.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to nearest of Rupee.

{
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Number of Shareholdings Total Number of Percentage
Shareholders From To Shares Held of Total
184 1 100 10,746 0.0086%
314 101 500 129,069 0.1033%
131 501 1000 124,865 0.0999%
208 1001 5000 539,650 0.4318%
73 5001 10000 587,652 0.4703%
28 10001 15000 363,300 0.2907%
17 15001 20000 325,500 0.2605%
14 20001 25000 329,180 0.2634%
5 25001 30000 142,000 0.1136%
7 30001 35000 227,691 0.1822%
2 35001 40000 74,500 0.0596%
5 40001 45000 209,500 0.1677%
5 45001 50000 250,000 0.2001%
3 50001 55000 153,000 0.1224%
4 60001 65000 250,370 0.2004%
2 65001 70000 140,000 0.1120%
2 70001 75000 148,500 0.1188%
2 85001 90000 177,000 0.1416%
1 90001 95000 93,000 0.0744%
7 95001 100000 689,502 0.5518%
1 100001 105000 100,500 0.0804%
1 105001 110000 105,500 0.0844%
1 110001 115000 114,000 0.0912%
1 120001 125000 125,000 0.1000%
1 160001 165000 161,500 0.1292%
1 180001 185000 184,000 0.1472%
2 195001 200000 400,000 0.3201%
1 200001 205000 201,000 0.1608%
1 210001 215000 212,000 0.1697%
1 250001 230000 226,500 0.1813%
1 230001 235000 235,000 0.1881%
1 505001 510000 507,500 0.4061%
2 560001 565000 1,122,729 0.8985%
1 875001 880000 880,000 0.7042%
1 1160001 1165000 1,162,500 0.9303%
1 1395001 1400000 1,400,000 1.1203%
1 2065001 2070000 2,067,500 1.6545%
5 2170001 2175000 10,866,666 8.6959%
1 4535001 4540000 4,536,606 3.6304%
1 6290001 6295000 6,293,140 5.0360%
1 13035001 13040000 13,040,000 10.4351%
1 27415001 27420000 27,419,177 21.9419%
1 48635001 48640000 48,636,667 38.9210%
1,043 124,962,510 100%
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Sr. # Categories No. of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
1 Individuals 1008 17.303.630 13.85%
2 Directors/Sponsors ete. 14 78,850,473 63.10%
3 Financial Institutions 5 565,392 0.45%
4 Modarabas 1 300 0.00%
5 Insurance Companies 1 114.000 0.09%
6 Investment Companies 1 3.000 0.00%
7 Funds 2 32,803 0.03%
8 Associated company / undertakings 1 27,419,177 21.94%
9 Others 10 673,735 0.54%

TOTAL: 1043 124,962,510 100
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DETAILED CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 30 JUNE 2022

Directors/Sponsors Shares Held Percentage

1. Ch. Muhammad Shafique

54,929,807 43.9570
2. Mr. Muhammad Asim Raza 500 0.0004
3. Miss Eman Shafique 500 0.0004
4. Miss Afifa Shafique 500 0.0004
5.  Mr. Muhammad Hashim Tareen 2,500 0.0020
6. Mr. Mahmood Aslam 2,500 0.0020
7.  Mr. Waheed Akbar 2,500 0.0020
8. Mrs. Sarwar Sultana 13,042,500 10.4371
9. Mr. Ali Shafique 2,500 0.0020
10. Ch Muhammad Zafar 2,173,334 1.7392
11. Uma E Salma 2,173,333 1.7392
12. Uzma Zafar 2,173,333 1.7392
13. Najma Aziz 2,173,333 1.7392
14. Shabana Shafique 2,173,333 1.7392
Associated companies, undertakings and related parties 27,419,177 21.9419
Financial Institutions
1. National Bank Of Pakistan 195 0.0002
2. Bank Alfalah Limited - Lahore Stock Exchange Branch 560,097 0.4482
3. Investment Corporation Of Pakistan 2,800 0.0022
4. Crescent Investment Bank Ltd 2,100 0.0017
5. Grays And Cambridge (Pakistan) Ltd 200 0.0002
Modarabas
1. Modaraba Al-Mali Corporation Ltd 300 0.0002
Insurance Companies
1. State Life Insurance Corp. Of Pakistan 114,000 0.0912
Investment Companies
1. Pakistan Kuwait Investment Co.(Pvt) Ltd 3.000 0.0024
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Funds
1. Trustee National Bank Of Pakistan Emp Benevolent Fund

2. Trustee National Bank Of Pakistan Employees Pension Fund
Others
1. Imgc Global (Pvt.) Limited

2. Maple Leaf Capital Limited

3. Y.S. Securities & Services (Pvt) Ltd.
4. D.S.Corporation (Pvt) Limited

5. Saya Securities (Private) Limited.
6. Salim Sozer Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

Individuals

Grand Total

Shareholders Holding 5% Or More Voting Rights:

1. Ch. Muhammad Shafique
2. Mrs. Sarwar Sultana

3. Chaudhry Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited

1,112

31,691

10,000
1

1,200
3,400
96,502
562,632

17,303,630

124,962,510

54,929,807
13,042,500

27,419,177

0.0009

0.0254

0.0080

0.0000

0.0010

0.0027

0.0772

0.4502

14

100

44

10

22

All Trade In The Shares Of The Listed Company, Carried Out By Its Directors, Executives And Their Spouses And

Minor Children Shall Also Disclosed.
Sr. No.
1. Ch. Muhammad Shafique

2. Ali Shafique

SPONSOR
CEO

Sale

8,060,606

Purchased

2,500
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Form of Proxy

36th Annual General Meeting

1/We,
of. being a member of
BECO STEEL LIMITED and a holder of ordinary shares

as per Share Register Folio No.

For beneficial owners as per CDC List

CDC Participant I1.D. No. Sub-Account No.
CNIC No. | | | | | |* | | | | | | | |* | | hereby appoint

of.

another member of the company as per Register Folio No.

or (failing him/her) of

another member of the company as per Register Folio No.

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/our behalf at 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday
28th October, 2022 at 03:00 p.m at the Florets Luxury Apartments, Ground Floor, G-7, 127-Ahmad Block, Garden Town, Lahore and
at any adjournment thereof.

(Cignatrie chemld agrees writh

Please affix rupees fifty

the specimen signature
revenue stamp

registered in the Company)

Signature of Shareholder

Dated this day of _ _ 2022 Signature of Proxy

For beneficial owners as per CDC list

1. WITNESS 2. WITNESS

Signature Signature

Name: Name:

Address; Address:

evewo, [LTTOT-TTETTLTN] emenwe LETTIITTETTTITA]
NOTES: -

= This proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the company not later than 48 hours
before the time of holding the Meeting.
= Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners, proxy holder and witnesses shall be furnished with the proxy form.

= The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

= |n case of corporate entity, the Board's resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be furnished along with proxy
form to the Company.
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